PLISNESK ARCHEOLOGICAL COMPLEX
The complex of archeological monuments of the Middle Ages is located in the northern end part of Podillya upland (forest-steppe zone), close to today’s village of Pidhirtsi, Brody district, Lviv region. It occupies the top of the plateau, which is singled out by deep ravines and gullies, as well as the territory of the same-name hamlet, extending close to the waterhead of the river of Western Buzhok. Around the plateau there originate water arteries of the Baltic and Black Sea basins: the rivers of Western Buzhok (the tributary of the Western Bug), Styr (the tributary of the Prypyat) and Seret (the tributary of the Dniester). This locality belongs to Holohory-Voronyaky mountain-ridge, which is distinguished for the variety of the natural settings: raised areas are divided by deep gullies, ravines and valleys. They impart to the broken-up relief the looks of a mountainous landscape; the surface is of hilly-chain structure and is composed of marl, sands, limestone, chalk and other rocks, mainly covered with light grey and grey loess-like and black earth soils; the hilly part is reforested with mixed hardwood and softwood, among which beech, hornbeam, oak, ash, pine trees and fir trees are the most frequent, while in the gullies and in the valleys there grow dense herbs.

The archeological complex includes the following: cult pagan centre; Slavic hillfort of the 9th–10th c.; barrow burial ground of the 11th – early 12th c.; Old Rus hillfort of the 11th – 13th c., which is mentioned twice in “Povist Mynulych Lit” (“The Story of the Days of Old”) in the year 1188 and 1232 (Plsnsk, Plesnesk, Presnesk) and in “Slovo o Polku Ihorevim” (“The Tale of Igor’s Campaign”); the villages of the Slavic and Old Rus period located close to the south-western and the western border of the hillfort of the 9th-10th c., as well as residential and utility as well as cult buildings of the monastery of the Order of St. Basil the Great, which is mentioned for the first time in 1180. 

Some components of this complex (barrow burial ground and the central part of hillforts of the Slavic and Old Rus period) have been researched for about 200 years. The first amateur excavations on its territory were launched as far back as in 1810, and scientific research started only at the beginning of the eighties of the 19th century. Systematic work on the basis of which there appeared the first generalizations in scientific literature as to the nature, range of functioning and important of the archeological complex near Pidhirtsi are without any doubt connected with such personality as І. D. Starchuk. During four field seasons (1946–1949) he managed to explore a considerable area of the central part of the Slavic and Old Rus hillforts (over 2 thousand square metres) and 5 barrows on the burial ground. During the period of research 28 in-depth dwellings, 20 pise stoves of ground-based buildings, 96 soil inhumation and 5 under-barrow burials have been found, several thousands of findings have been made. Unfortunately, now they are dispersed, they are kept in the funds of museum and scientific institutions of Ukraine and beyond its boundaries. 

In the 50ies–80ies of the 20th c. the hillfort of Old Rus period was researched by a number of specialists who left quite a noticeable trace. The most substantial results were obtained by M. P. Kuchera. His scientific papers played an important role in the study of the following issues: formation of feudal relations and birth of cities in the early Middle Ages; dating and chronology of the ceramics of the early Middle Ages; crafts development, etc. 

At the end of the 60ies – the beginning of the 70ies field researches of the annalistic Plisnesk were renewed. Over that period of time the greatest attention to the study of the monument was paid by R. S. Bahriy. The works were mainly done in dytynets, and as the result of that 25 soil inhumation burials and the remains of 9 pise stoves of the 12th –13th c. were found. Apart from that, to the west of the central area of the hillfort he traced the remains of the foundation of the stone building and inhumation burials of Old Rus period.
Starting with 1990 Plisnesk archeological complex has been systematically studied by the archeological expedition of Ivan Krypyakevych Institute of Ukrainian Studies of the National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine, and since 2000  – by the Institute of Archeology of Ivan Franko National University of Lviv, under the supervision of M. A. Fylypchuk. Over that period of time quite a lot of work has been done (primarily reclamation one) in different parts of the complex. The results obtained enabled to single out two periods of the complex development: Slavic one (8th– 10th c.) and Old Ukrainian one (11th – 13th c.). The first period includes: cult pagan centre; soil cremation burial grounds and crematorium, hillforts of city state structure as well as some non-fortified villages adjacent to it, simultaneous in time. During the second, Old Rus period, the complex consisted of the following: hillfort of burg, that is castle model; barrow burial ground of the 11th – early 12th c.; remains of Christian religious buildings and four inhumation cemeteries of the 11th – the 13th c.; non-fortified villages simultaneous in time and production centres. Fortified city area in the Slavic period made up over 450, while the one in the Old Rus period made up only 2.8 ha. City-state model of Plisnesk hillfort testifies to the formation of early state structures by the local residents even before the coming of Volodymyr the Great to these lands.

In 2008 a field scientific workshop was held at Plisnesk archeological complex as well as the final part of the second symposium “Birth of Slavic states: condition and prospects for research” in which there participated the leading specialists in the sphere of early Middle Ages of the Institute of Archeology of the National Academy of Sciences of Ukraine and research institutions of the Central and South-East Europe was held there.
Due to great cultural and historical as well as scientific importance of the monument in 1965 with the Resolution of the Council of Ministers of the Ukrainian SSR the upper part of the Slavic and Old Rus hillfort came to be protected by state: arable lands were taken out of circulation and allotted to haymaking. In 2009 Plisnesk archeological complex of the 8th – the 13th c. was included into the register of archeological monuments of national importance. 

